
 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
February 8, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes – February 8, 2016 

 
Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 
 
A meeting of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair 
William Hutwelker. Present were Keith Thibault, Bryan Rudgers, Alternate Shane Bryant, Alternate 
Marty Geheran and Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary. The Recording Secretary called the roll and 
read the Agenda for the meeting. 
 
Absent:  Sarah Tatro, Bob Mitchell, and Alternate Charles Beauregard, Sr.  
 
Others Present:  Director of Planning and Community Development Sara Carbonneau and Lou Berube. 
 
Minutes:   

• Meeting Minutes for January 11, 2016 were considered. Motion was made by Thibault to 
approve the meeting minutes of January 11, 2016. There was a second to the motion by 
Rudgers. No further discussion was held and all were in favor. The motion passed. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Public Hearing 
L & G Propane requests a variance from Section V.B.3. to construct two 60,000 gallon above-ground 
propane storage tanks.  The property is situated in the Business District and shown at Tax Map 3, Lot 3.  
The property is located on Forbush Lane and is owned by L & G Berube Realty Trust. 
 
The Chair seated Bryant for Mitchell and Geheran for Tatro. 
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:02 p.m. 
The Chair invited Berube to speak about his request. Berube said that his business has ballooned and 
therefore they need more storage capacity. He said they would like to install two additional tanks to be 
set back further from State Route 12. However, he said the tanks would be within the 75 foot setback 
for Forbush Lane and therefore is seeking a variance. He spoke about an existing stone wall and some 
wetlands. Geheran asked about the closest distance to Forbush Lane and Berube said it would be about 
40 feet. Carbonneau said that the tank would be about 32 - 33 feet from the property line which ends at 
the easement. Berube said the proposed location fits the shape of the property best.  There was a 
discussion about a gully on the property that he would like to avoid encroaching upon. He said traffic 
coming from the ScrapIt property is minimal. Carbonneau noted that with the 75 foot setback, there is a 
limited building envelope.  Carbonneau said there is no impact on the wetlands and therefore no need 
for a wetlands variance.  There was a discussion about the traffic pattern for the business and not 
wanting tankers to butt up to the electrical shed. It was also noted that propane trucks should be able to 



 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
February 8, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 

drive straight through the facility and not have to backup.  There was discussion about what other 
structures are in the vicinity of the property and a church was noted quite far back from the property. 
Berube also noted that across from the business the land is ledge and not buildable. 
 
Thibault asked why above ground storage tanks and not below ground tanks. Berube said it is difficult to 
pump propane up.  Berube said that there is also oil storage on the site.  He noted the tanks will be the 
same height as the existing tanks, but longer.  Berube said he has consulted with the Fire Department 
and noted that the Fire Chief is okay with the plan.  
 
Smith asked a question regarding terrorism.  He asked what kind of security is at the site. Berube said 
that the tanks are in locked fencing.  Smith noted 120,000 gallons of propane which could do substantial 
harm. Berube said that there is a camera system going in at the location. Smith agreed that was a good 
idea. 
 
Hutwelker noted the following factors: electrical building location, the gully at the location, the traffic 
pattern for the tanker vehicles, and the fact that the oil storage is closer to Forbush than the proposed 
tanks, and a security system will be put in this week. Rudgers noted that the site looks better now than 
it has looked in the past and he thanked Berube for his efforts. 
 
Thibault asked about the size of the tankers that transport the propane. The answer was about 12,000-
15,000 gallon tankers and they come in several times a week. He also noted that propane is much lighter 
than oil. 
 
Public Hearing closed at 7:25 p.m.  
 
Chair Hutwelker considered the request of L & G Propane for a variance from Section V.B.3. to construct 
two 60,000 gallon above-ground propane storage tanks on property situated in the Business District and 
shown at Tax Map 3, Lot 3.  The property is located on Forbush Lane and is owned by L & G Berube 
Realty Trust. 
 
He reviewed the Checklist for Granting a Variance with the members of the Board: 
 

1. Could the variances be granted without being contrary to the public interest? 
Members said: yes 
 

2. Would the spirit of the ordinance be observed if the variances were granted? 
Members said: yes 
 

3. Would the granting the variances do substantial justice? 
Members said: yes 
 

4. Could the variances be granted without diminishing surrounding property values? 
Members said: yes 
 

5. Do special conditions of the property exist that distinguish it from other properties in the area?   
Members said: yes – the shape of the property is one factor 
 



 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
February 8, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 

a. Owing to the special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other property in the area, 
there is not a fair and substantial relationship between the general public purpose of the ordinance 
and the specific application of the provision to the property?  Members said:  special conditions are 
the shape of the land, the wetlands on the property, the drop-off of elevation, and the increase of 
elevation opposite the property are all unique characteristics of the property. 

b. Are the proposed uses a reasonable one?  Members said: yes 
 

6. If the criteria in subparagraph a. and b. are not met, an unnecessary hardship will be deemed to exist if, 
and only if: Owing to the special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other properties in the 
area the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the ordinance, and a variance is 
necessary to enable a reasonable use of the property.   
 

The Chair reported that “yes” prevailed and he entertained a motion to grant/deny the request for 
Variance from Section III.S.4. 
 

Motion was made by Bryant to grant the request of L & G Propane for a variance from Section 
V.B.3. to construct two 60,000 gallon above-ground propane storage tanks on property situated 
in the Business District, shown at Tax Map 3, Lot 3 on Forbush Lane and owned by L & G Berube 
Realty Trust. There was a second by Geheran and no further discussion. All were in favor. 
Motion passed. 

 
Ex parte discussion and Right-to-Know Law 
Discussion was held regarding ex parte discussions and the Right-to -Know law. Carbonneau provided a 
document from the New Hampshire Municipal Association for Land Use Boards.  Carbonneau noted the 
Town needs to notice meetings, keep minutes and post within five business days, and make the minutes 
available to any citizen who asks for them. If you have a quorum and you discuss business outside of a 
public meeting that would be a violation of the Right-to-Know Law.  Carbonneau also noted that 
members cannot conduct business via email.  She noted that “Reply All” is a bad thing to do in general.  
Carbonneau offered to address any specific questions at the next meeting. She also asked that members 
of the Board address questions directly to her and to the Town Administrator.  Carbonneau said she 
would provide the Right-to-Know document to the members of the ZBA who were not present tonight. 
 
DISCUSSION/OTHER MATTERS 
 
Motion to adjourn was made by Bryant, seconded by Thibault and all were in favor. Motion passed.  
Adjournment occurred at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 


